

Community Planning Partnership Period Products (Free Provision) (Scotland) Act 2021

Period Positive South Lanarkshire Guidance for Schools August 2022

Contents

ntroduction	2
_egislation / Legal Obligations for Provision in Schools	3
Administration of these responsibilities	3
Respect for Dignity	3
Reasonable Choice	4
Consideration of the environmental impact of single use period products	4
Inclusion	4
Information to be provided to pupils	5
Risk management	5
Safety information	5
Consultation and Delivery	5
Access to free products out-with term time	6
Guidance on implementation	6
Ordering	6
Storage	6
Best Practice	7
Frequently Asked Questions	8
Appendix 1 – Toxic Shock Syndrome Information1	0
Appendix 2 – Useful resources and information1	1
Appendix 3 – Public Locations1	2

Introduction

Since 2018 South Lanarkshire schools have provided period products for children and young people affected by poverty. Scotland has since become the first country in the world to pass legislation which guarantees free period products for all who require them, regardless of economic status. For schools this means we must have policies and processes in place for any child or young person who menstruates to be able to access free period products whenever they require them.

This paper provides the legal guidance, as well as some Frequently Asked Questions and hints for Best Practice. You will see that the views and opinions of our children and young people have been included throughout this document and should be considered when planning how to organise this in schools.

Legislation for Provision in Schools

The information provided within this section is taken from the <u>'Period Products (Free Provision)</u> (Scotland) Act 2021'. The aim of this document is to provide all schools with the information required to meet their legal obligation to provide free Period Products to all who require them.

The Act states that sufficient products must be obtainable for free in schools to meet pupils' needs.

There must be no judgement as to the need, **no limit** to the number of products an individual can take, nor attempts to 'ration' products. Individuals don't need a reason to access the products, above and beyond the fact that they menstruate.

Administration of these responsibilities

The Act places statutory duties on schools, rather than the voluntary provision previously in place. Schools may find it helpful to appoint a lead individual to take overall responsibility of meeting the duties set out in the Act and this lead person should make contact with <u>Period.Positive@southlanarkshire.gov.uk</u> to ensure that this information is recorded for future use.

The Act places a duty on schools to establish and maintain arrangements for period products to be obtainable free of charge during term time on their premises, including in *every* building normally used by pupils, e.g. sports halls if these are in a different building.

Respect for Dignity

An important aspect of the Act is that young people should be able to access products **without having to ask for them.** This means the products should be freely available in areas which are clearly signed as containing them. Schools should use posters provided in April 2022, additional posters and signage can be ordered for each school via the Smart Store (more info in Ordering section below).

The method and locations where products are made obtainable should consider the needs and wishes of users in relation to privacy (including for religious and/or cultural reasons) and avoiding anxiety or embarrassment.

Reasonable Choice

The type of period product an individual uses is a matter of personal preference that schools must consider when deciding which products to make available free of charge in meeting their duty.

The Act states that "types of period products include tampons, sanitary towels and articles which are reusable".

Through the Consultation process across all schools in South Lanarkshire, the children and young people made it clear they would prefer to have different sizes of pads and liners as well as tampons which have applicators. Please note that when ordering products the term 'digital tampon' refers to *non-applicator* tampons.

While schools have been encouraged to use Hey Girls in the past due to procurement issues, there are now more products available through the new system (please see section on ordering). This should ensure the young people will be able to have the products they prefer.

Consideration of the environmental impact of single use period products

Schools should consider the most appropriate way to make reusable period products available for free for those who wish to use those types of products. **There should be no pressure** applied to people who do not wish to use reusable products, but consideration should be given to making sustainable or plastic-free products available as part of the choice of products. This was important to the young people who responded to the South Lanarkshire Education Consultation, although it was clear that the young people were not aware that 'Hey Girls' products currently provided are plastic-free and made from sustainable materials

Schools are able to order reusable products from the Online PPSL Smart Store. Schools that would like to make reusable products available as part of a wider project, should provide as much information around the project and email <u>Period.Positive@southlanarkshire.gov.uk</u> where a member of the team can discuss this with you. There are controls in place for order limits of how many products can be ordered each time on the Smart Store. If a school would like to order more than the maximum quantity, then they should contact the Period Positive email.

Inclusion

Not everyone who menstruates identifies as female, therefore as part of ensuring a dignified approach, schools must ensure that the arrangements put in place to meet their duties allow any individual who menstruates, including transgender males and non-binary individuals, to access products.

In practice this is likely to require products to be available in gender neutral toilets/disabled toilets. A proportionate approach is acceptable, as long as it is clear to everyone, whether they need to use products themselves or they are collecting products on behalf of someone else, where they can access free products. No-one should be asked for the reason they are collecting products.

Information to be provided to pupils

The Act requires schools to make information available about the arrangements in place through which pupils can obtain free period products. The information that must be provided is:

- a) Period products are obtainable free of charge
- b) How, where and when they can obtain free products

The 2022 Schools Consultation highlighted that many young people do not know how or where to access products, so work is required in schools to ensure this is included as an important piece of information to be shared using normal channels.

Risk management

A number of risks have been identified over the course of the voluntary delivery to date including

- Provision of safety information in relation to loose products (see below)
- Blood spillages in public facilities related to reusable products
- Risks resulting from poor storage conditions
- Products going out of date

Any risks identified should be considered and managed through the school Risk Assessment procedures.

Safety information

Where tampons are being supplied loose from their packaging (for example, single tampons available from a basket of products within a washroom) they will not have the accompanying safety information leaflet that would be included in a box of tampons. For public health purposes it is recommended that schools provide that information to those accessing the products, e.g. via a poster at the point of collection. Toilet door signage samples including tampon safe use signage was provided to all secondary schools in April 2022. Schools can purchase these signs via the SLC Print room service using their sanitary products budget. **This information is also attached to this document as Appendix 1.**

It is also very important to note that products do have an expiration date, and these should be closely monitored and a process set up to remove products which are out-with their use by date.

Consultation and Delivery

SLC has undertaken council-wide consultation, however schools should also complete their own consultation process with pupils. Responsibility is devolved to schools for the planning and provision of products within each school, to best meet the needs in their own local context.

It would be good practice for consultation and delivery design in schools to be linked to menstrual health education and tackling stigma. There are helpful educational resources available at:

https://rshp.scot/ https://young.scot/campaigns/national/periods

Access to free products out-with term time

There is no requirement on schools to make period products obtainable for use out-with term time, as young people will be able to access free period products under the arrangements put in place by the Local Authority. Schools *may* however wish to make up packs that children and young people can take home for school holidays or for during school trips.

Schools may wish to consider the most appropriate way to support their pupils by:

- Sharing the process for ordering products online from SLC with all pupils through this link. Products are sent directly to homes so pupils do not need to collect from school or any other SLC facility. This link should also be shared with families through the usual communication methods to allow other family members to take advantage of the free products.
- Making sufficient products available toward the end of term for pupils to take away for the holidays if they would prefer to do this.
- Continuing to make period products obtainable in schools that are open to pupils for holiday activities

This should be considered in consultation with pupils.

Guidance on implementation

Ordering

An online ordering process is currently being implemented for all schools and facilities out in the community. School staff, early years staff and community partners will be able to use this new system to order all products and items that are required. The Smart Store has been created to offer more choice in all settings, while keeping a consistent approach across the local authority.

Sites will be able to use the Smart Store to order any signage or materials that are required. If there are items that you would like to order including signage etc which are not available on the shop, please contact a member of the team at Period.Positive@southlanarkshire.gov.uk

Each site will receive a login to access the store along with a site code that will be required for the order to go though. South Lanarkshire Council's Print Team will set each school up with a login, which will be sent to the school generic email address. Instructions on how to use the service will also be emailed.

Online sessions on how to use the Smart Store will be available, and information on these sessions will come in due course.

Storage

In consultation with the young people, schools can store products as they choose as long as they are accessible at the point of need. Please note again, however, that there must be systems in place to remove products which are out of date.

South Lanarkshire Council have partnered with Hey Girls, and have custom Perspex trough dispensers available, all schools had been sent dispensers in April 2022. Where possible we would encourage schools to use these, to ensure continuity with out with school locations who all use these.

Best Practice

- Children and young people are consulted to inform policies/processes within individual schools.
- Products are available in toilet cubicles, preferably in bags hanging on toilet doors.
- Cubicles containing products also contain a sanitary bin.
- Products are always available during the school day including gender-neutral/accessible toilets.
- A variety of products and sizes are available at all times.
- There are clear (and shared) processes in place for bulk product distribution.
- There are clear (and shared) processes for distribution of reusable products.
- Products should be stored in such a way as to deter misuse.
- Young people are not penalised for asking out of class to access products (some schools use a 'code word').
- Schools should strive to remove the stigma around periods through more education on the subject.
- Availability of period products (and where to access them) should be part of transition planning.
- Emergency supplies of pants, tights and leggings should be available on request.
- Storage is sufficient to reduce the need for constant re-stocking but the janitor is responsible for checking when products need to be restocked.
- Children and young people are not pressured into trying reusable products, but products are available for anyone who wants to try them. Reusable products can be ordered from the Smart Store in line with the conditions in 'Consideration of the environmental impact of single use period products section above'.
- Please see Appendix 2 for some useful information and resources.

Frequently Asked Questions

Q. I have lost our school's login for the online Shop... how can I get it?

A. The team will be able to get this for you, email Period.Positive@southlanarkshire.gov.uk

Q. Do we need products in every cubicle in the school (female and gender-neutral toilets)

A. No. But our young people have clearly stated that they prefer products to be in the cubicles. They do not need to be in *every* cubicle as wherever the products are, there also needs to be a sanitary bin. It would be preferable to have products in a bag hung on the back of the door. Bags can be made available for schools if they wish by contacting the Period Positive email.

Q. Can we provide tampons in a primary school?

A. Yes, but this should be in response to a parental request and done in partnership. Schools should ensure that when providing tampons to a young person in a Primary School that they share the Toxic Shock information with that young person and their parents (see Appendix 1).

Q. Who is responsible for restocking the sanitary products and when?

A. The janitor will restock as part of the usual replenishing of toilet supplies i.e. after break or lunchtimes. It is therefore vital that the janitor (and any janitorial cover) is knowledgeable about where the period products are located for pupils in the school to access and where the stock is kept.

Q. How do we stop pupils from vandalising the products when they are left out in the pupil toilets?

A. This may be an issue initially, however schools have reported that this dramatically reduces after a 'settling in' period. Effective storage/dispensers and additional information on periods within the curriculum should also help with this. Be patient!

Q. Can we use the Period Products budget to buy a small emergency stock of pants, leggings, tights etc.?

A. No. All orders for period products will be via the Smart Store, where a wide selection of products can be ordered if leggings etc. are required, schools will need to purchase from other funding streams.

Q. Can we put wet wipes in the toilets?

A. No. Although the consultation showed that children and young people did want this, it is not environmentally friendly. Schools could consider purchasing a spray to be used with toilet paper, however, sprays cannot be purchased using period product funding either.

Q. How do we find out how much is in our budget to spend on products?

A. Schools will no longer hold the period product budget and all orders for products can be made via the PPSL Smart Store. Questions can be sent to <u>Period.Positive@southlanarkshire.gov.uk</u>

Q. Can we provide sustainable products which are plastic-free?

A. Although not the only supplier, Hey Girls products are all made from 100% certified organic cotton, sustainable bamboo and chemical-free products. Schools can also provide reusable products on request.

Q. I am interested in trialling or offering reusable products out to some pupils/all of the full year group, but unsure how I should go around this?

A. All orders for products will be ordered online using the Smart Store, if you would like to offer products as part of a wider initiative, please first contact the team with as much information as possible. There are controls in place for order limits of how many products can be ordered each time on the Smart Store. If a school would like to order more than the maximum quantity, then they should contact the Period Positive email.

Q. I want to make an online order for products but looking for some more information

A. A member of the council's Community Engagement Team will be able to contact you, please email <u>Period.Positive@southlanarkshire.gov.uk</u>

Q. Do we need to provide products to young people who are not at school e.g. remote learners or during school trips?

A. No. The duty on schools only extends to making free period products available to learners attending their premises in person and does not require them to post products to remote learners. They can however request a delivery or access products in other locations, see Appendix 3 for up to date list of locations. Pupils can also download the *'pick up my period'* app where they can be given directions to their nearest location (available on the Apple App Store and Android store (both free)

Q. Are staff allowed to use the free products?

A. While products are for pupils in schools, if staff have found themselves in need of products there is no issue with staff using products that are available. Staff that also live in South Lanarkshire are able to order products online <u>here</u>. Staff from other Local Authorities should consult their own Council's website for their provision. (Note that not *all* council areas offer an online ordering service)

Appendix 1 – Toxic Shock Syndrome Information

IMPORTANT INFORMATION ON TAMPON USE

Tampons are associated with Toxic Shock Syndrome (TSS). TSS is a rare but very serious illness that can develop rapidly in anyone. But don't worry – across the whole of the UK, there are only about 20 cases reported each year that are associated with people using tampons. TSS is so rare that most doctors will not come across TSS during their medical careers. Further information on TSS is available at <u>www.tssiss.com</u>.

Symptoms of TSS include: a sudden high fever usually over 39C, vomiting, diarrhoea, muscle aches, a sun burn like rash, sore throat, dizziness and/or fainting, and severe flu-like feeling. Not all symptoms of TSS may occur simultaneously.

In the unlikely event that symptoms of TSS occur, remove the tampon, consult with a doctor urgently and inform them that a tampon has been used. If left untreated, TSS can be fatal. The following actions will help reduce the very small risk of TSS occurring.

- At night, insert a fresh tampon before going to sleep and replace first thing in the morning. Change your tampon every 4 to 8 hours or more often if need.
- Think about switching between tampons and towels, pads/liners from time to time during you period.
- Only use tampons during menstruation, use only one tampon at any time, and ensure the removal of the last tampon once menstruation has finished.

To help the environment, remember to dispose of tampons, applicator tubes and wrappers in a waste bin. Please DO NOT flush tampons, applicator tubes or wrappers.

Appendix 2 – Useful resources and information

Period Positive Team	The period product team is managed by the council's Community Engagement Team, and can be contacted at <u>Period.Positive@southlanarkshire.gov.uk</u>
Young Scot	Information aimed at young people that are going though or looking for more information about having periods. Information can be accessed at <u>www.young.scot/periods</u> .
Hey Girls	Hey Girls are the award-winning period products social enterprise. South Lanarkshire Council have officially partnered up with Hey Girls to provide free period products in over 300 locations in South Lanarkshire including schools. For more information on the work that Hey Girls do, visit <u>www.heygirls.co.uk</u>
Toxic shock syndrome (TSS)	Toxic shock syndrome (TSS) is a rare but life-threatening condition caused by bacteria getting into the body and releasing harmful toxins. More Information on the NHS website: <u>Toxic shock</u> <u>syndrome - NHS (www.nhs.uk)</u>

Appendix 3 – Public Locations

List correct as of 11 August 2022

Below locations have period products available for either emergency provision, or for bulk supply collection. Opening times vary across each location and is advised to check with the location prior visiting. This list will be reviewed on a regular basis.

Ward 1 – Clydesdale West

Site Name	Address 1	Address 2	Town	Postcode
Carluke Library	Carnwath Road		Carluke	ML84DF
Carluke Lifestyles	Carnwath Road		Carluke	ML8 4DF
Tom Craig Centre	1 Lawhill Road		Law	ML8 5JQ
Braidwood Hall	100 Braidwood Road		Braidwood	ML8 5NU
Clydesdale Foodbank	66 High Street		Carluke	ML8 4AJ
Carluke Community Health Centre	40 Chapel Street		Carluke	ML8 4BA
Carluke Universal Connections	37 Stewart Street		Carluke	ML8 4AL
Carluke Leisure Centre	135 Carnwath Road		Carluke	ML8 4EA

Ward 2 – Clydesdale North

Site Name	Address 1	Address 2	Town	Postcode
Esteem Clydesdale	15 Bannatyne Street		Lanark	ML11 7JR
Lanark Library	16 Hope Street		Lanark	ML11 71Z
Forth Library	Froth Primary School	Main Street	Forth	ML11 8AE
Lanark Lifestyles	Thomas Taylor Avenue		Lanark	ML11 7DG
Willie Waddle Sport and Community Centre	Main Street		Forth	ML11 8AA
Nemphlar Hall	67 Hall Road		Nemphlar	ML11 8NA
Lanark Memorial Hall	St Leonard Street		Lanark	ML11 7AB
Lanark Health Centre	Woodstock Medical Campus	Woodstock Road	Lanark	MI11 7DH
Kingshill Health Centre	40 Manse Road	Forth	Lanark	ML11 8AJ
Lanark Universal Connections	13 St Vincent Place		Lanark	ML11 7LA
Braehead Hall	11 Carnwath Road		Braehead	ML11 8EY
Healthy Valleys - Smyllum Resource Centre	31 Smyllum Road			ML11 7BZ
Forth Community Resource Centre	57 Hawkwood Terrace		Lanark	ML11 8AT

Ward 3 – Clydesdale East

Site Name	Address 1	Address 2	Town	Postcode
Carstairs Junction Welcome All Hub	39 Coronation Street		Lanark	ML118RB
Biggar Library	Market Road		Bigger	ML12 6FX
Biggar Municipal Hall	5 Kirkstyle		Biggar	ML12 6DT
Symington Hall	65 Main Street		Symington	ML12 6LL
Thankerton Hall	51 Station Road		Thankerton	ML12 6NZ
Carmichael Hall	School Road		Carmichael	ML12 6PG
Coulter Hall	Birthwood Road		Coulter	ML12 6PT
Elsrickle Hall	Carnwath Road		Elsrickle	ML12 6QZ
Roberton Hall	Mill Road		Roberton	ML12 6RS
Abington Hall	Carlisle Road		Abington	ML12 6SD
Crawford Hall	100 Carlisle Road		Crawford	ML12 6TW
Leadhills Hall	Ramsay Road		Leadhills	ML12 6YA
Dolphinton Hall	Edinburgh Road		Dolphinton	EH46 7AD
South Vennel Council Offices (SLC)	South Vennel		Lanark	ML11 7JT
Carstairs Junction Hall	1 St Charles Avenue		Carstairs Junction	ML11 8PQ
Carstairs Community Centre (CM)	School Road		Lanark	ML11 8QF
Carnwath Town Hall	70 Main Street		Carnwath	ML11 8JY
Biggar Health Centre	South Croft Road		Biggar	ML12 6BE
Carnwath Health Centre	7 Biggar Road		Carnwath	ML11 8HJ
Biggar Sports Centre	Market Road		Biggar	ML12 6AG
Biggar Park Golf Course	Biggar Public Park & Golf Course	Broughton Road	Biggar	ML12 6HA

Ward 4 – Clydesdale South

Site Name	Address 1	Address 2	Town	Postcode
Blackwood and Kirkmuirhill Library	Blackwood Primary School	Carlisle Road	Kirkmuirhill	ML11 9SB
Lesmahagow Library	48 Abbeygreen		Lesmahagow	ML11 0EF
Blackwood and Kirkmuirhill Community Wing	Blackwood Primary School	Carlisle Road	Kirkmuirhill	ML11 9SB
The Fountain	Abbeygreen		Lesmahagow	ML11 0UD
Brocketsbrae Hall	35 Brocketsbrae Road		Brocketsbrae	ML11 9PT
Rigside Hall	Muirfoot Road		Rigside	ML11 9LY
Hollandbush Golf Course	Acretophead	Coalburn Road	Lesmahagow	ML11 0JS
Coalburn Leisure Complex	School Road		Coalburn	ML11 0LP
Lesmahagow Sports Facility	Strathaven Road		Lesmahagow	ML11 0FS
Douglas Universal Connections	Douglas Primary School	Ayr Road	Lanark	ML11 0QA
Auchenheath Hall	2 Lancaster Road		Auchenheath	ML11 9XE
Healthy Valleys - St Brides Community Centre		Braehead	Douglas	ML11 0PT

Ward 5 – Avondale and Stonehouse

Site Name	Address 1	Address 2	Town	Postcode
Avondale Community Wing (Library)	Overton Road		Strathaven	ML10 6JW
Avondale Gymnastics	Donaldson Road		Larkhall	ML9 2SS
Stonehouse Lifestyles	2 Udston Mill Road		Stonehouse	ML9 3JL
Chapelton Hall	35 Main Street		Chapelton	ML10 6RZ
Glassford Hall	Alston Street		Glassford	ML10 6TG
1st Stonehouse Guides & 1st Stonehouse Rangers	Stonehouse Scout and Guide Hall	Laurie Street	Stonehouse	ML9 3LN
Strathaven Health Centre	Strathaven Health Centre: The Ward		Strathaven	ML10 6AS
Langlangs Golf Course	Auldhouse Road		East Kilbride	G75 9DW
Strathaven Leisure Centre	Bowling Green Road		Strathaven	ML10 6DR

Ward 6 – East Kilbride South

Site Name	Address 1	Address 2	Town	Postcode
Waist Not Want Not	4 Greenhills Crescent		East Kilbride	G75 8TT
Greenhills Library	Greenhills Square		East Kilbride	G75 8TT
Greenhills Hall	14 Greenhills Square		East Kilbride	G75 8TT
Loaves and Fishes Foodbank	40 Singer Road	Kelvin Industrial Estate	East Kilbride	G75 0XS
Alistair McCoist Complex	Quarry Road		East Kilbride	G75 9LW
East Kilbride Community Foodbank	Greenhills Community Centre		East Kilbride	G75 8TT

Ward 7 – East Kilbride Central South

Site Name	Address 1	Address 2	Town	Postcode
Westwood Hall	Riverton Drive		East Kilbride	G75 8EY
Murray Owen Centre	1 Liddell Grove		East Kilbride	G75 9AD
Duncanrig Sports Centre	Winnipeg Drive		East Kilbride	G75 8ZT
East Kilbride Community Foodbank	Westwood Baptist Church	2 Tasman Drive	East Kilbride	G75 8EY
East Kilbride Community Foodbank	South Parish Church	Baird Hill	East Kilbride	G75 0EA

Ward 8 - East Kilbride Central Nor

Site Name	Address 1	Address 2	Town	Postcode
East Kilbride Central Library	The Olympia Shopping Centre		East Kilbride	G74 1PG
St Leonards Library	St Leonards Square		East Kilbride	G74 2AT
Share Alike	2A Righead Gate		East Kilbride	G74 1LS
Aqua Dollan Centre	Brouster Hill		East Kilbride	G74 1AF
Share Alike - Take 5	4 Cornwall Way		East Kilbride	G74 1JR
Civic Centre (SLC)	Andrew Street		East Kilbride	G74 1AB
East Kilbride Ice Rink	Olympia Shopping Centre		East Kilbride	G74 1PG
Ballerup Hall	Andrew Street		East Kilbride	G74 1AB
Blacklaw Community Wing	Glen Arroch		East Kilbride	G74 2BP
Hunter Health Centre	Andrew Street		East Kilbride	G74 1AD
East Kilbride Universal Connections	Town Centre Park	Brewster Hill	East Kilbride	G74 1AF
John Wright Sports Centre	Calderwood Road		East Kilbride	G74 3EU
East Kilbride Arts Centre	51 - 53 Old Coach Road		East Kilbride	G74 4DU
Agape Wellbeing	22 Cornwall Way		East Kilbride	G74 1JR
East Kilbride Community Foodbank	East Mains Baptist Church	The Village Centre	East Mains	G74 4HG

Ward 9 - East Kilbride West

Site Name	Address 1	Address 2	Town	Postcode
Mossneuk Community Wing	Mossneuk Drive		East Kilbride	G75 8XQ
Hairmyres Accident and Emergency	218 Eaglesham Road		East Kilbride	G75 8RG

Ward 10 - East Kilbride East

Site Name	Address 1	Address 2	Town	Postcode
East Kilbride Sports Centre	Calderglen Country Park	Strathaven Road	East Kilbride	G75 0QZ
Calderglen Zoo	Strathaven Road	East Kilbride	East Kilbride	G75 0QZ
Torrance House Golf Course	Starters Office	Calderglen Country Park	East Kilbride	G75 0QZ
Calderwood Hall	Blackbraes Road		East Kilbride	G74 3JT
East Kilbride Community Foodbank	Calderwood Baptist Church	Maxwellton Road	East Kilbride	G74 3LW
East Kilbride Community Foodbank	Claremont Parish Church	High Common Road	East Kilbride	G74 2AU

Ward 11 – Rutherglen South

Site Name	Address 1	Address 2	Town	Postcode
Springhall Library	30 Cruachan Road		Springhall	G73 5HW
Cathkin Community Wing	Burnside Road		Rutherglen	G73 4AA
Fernhill Community Centre	12 Auchenlarie Drive		Fernhill	G73 4EQ
Spittal Community Centre	2 Carrick Road		Rutherglen	G73 4LJ
Springhall Comm. Centre	30 Cruachan Road		Glasgow	G73 5HW
Stonelaw Community Sports Centre	Calderwood Road		Rutherglen	G73 3SE

Ward 12 – Rutherglen Central and North

Site Name	Address 1	Address 2	Town	Postcode
Rutherglen Library	163 Main Street		Rutherglen	G73 2HB
R:evolve (Rutherglen)	75 Main Street		Rutherglen	G73 2JQ
Rutherglen and Cambuslang Foodbank	Unit 37 Rutherglen Exchange		Rutherglen	G73 2LS
Rutherglen Health Centre	130 Stonelaw Raod		Rutherglen	G73 2PQ
Rutherglen Universal Connections	1 Burnhill Street		Rutherglen	G73 1ES
Rutherglen and Cambuslang Foodbank	Rutherglen Community Baptist Church	Avenue, corner of Stonelaw Road and Greenhill Road	Rutherglen	G73 2SL

Ward 13 – Cambuslang West

Site Name	Address 1	Address 2	Town	Postcode
Cambuslang Library	27 Main Street		Cambuslang	G72 7EX
Thrift + Gift (LEAP)	56 Hamilton Road		Rutherglen	G72 7LD
Eastfield Lifestyles	Glenside Drive		Rutherglen	G73 3LW
Cambuslang Gate (SLC)	27 Main Street		Cambuslang	G72 7EX
Cambuslang Institute	37 Greenlees Road		Cambuslang	G72 8JE
Cambuslang Clinic	5 Johnson Drive		Cambuslang	G72 8JR
Cambuslang Universal Connections	150 Main Street		Cambuslang	G72 7EL
Rutherglen and Cambuslang Foodbank	Romanian Pentecostal Church Halls	2 Cadzow Drive	Cambuslang	G72 8ND
Rutherglen and Cambuslang Foodbank	Whitlawburn Community Resource Centre	57 Belmont Road,	Cambuslang	G72 8PG

Ward 14 – Cambuslang East

Site Name	Address 1	Address 2	Town	Postcode
Toll Pitch Community Hall	8 Hamilton Road		Cambuslang	G72 7XR
Halfway Library	211 Hamilton Road		Halfway	G72 7PJ

Ward 15 - Blantyre

Site Name	Address 1	Address 2	Town	Postcode
David Livingston Birthplace	165 Station Road		Blantyre	G72 9BY
Blantyre Library	1a Clydeview Shopping Centre	Glasgow Road	Blantyre	G72 0QD
Blantyre Leisure Centre	Glasgow Road		Blantyre	G72 0JS
TACT Community Hall	Hillview Drive		Blantyre	G72 9EF
High Blantyre Hall	22 Cemetery Road	High Blantyre	Hamilton	G72 OHA
Priestfield Senior Citizens Hall	Main Street	High Blantyre	Hamilton	G72 ODL
Blantyre Health Centre	Victoria Street		Blantyre	G72 0BS
Hamilton District Foodbank	The Nazarene Hall	Elm Street	Blantyre	G72 0PZ

Ward 16 – Bothwell and Uddingston

Site Name	Address 1	Address 2	Town	Postcode
Uddingston Library	51 Bellshill Road		Uddingston	G71 7PA
Bothwell Library	The Donald Institute	2 Main Street	Bothwell	G71 8RG
Bothwell Community Hall	8 Fallside Road		Bothwell	G71 8HF
Uddingston Community Centre	47 Bellshill Road		Uddingston	G71 7PA
Uddingston Sports Centre	Old Glasgow Road		Uddingston	G71 7BT
David Milne Centre	84 Old Mill Road		Uddingston	G71 7PF

Ward 17 – Hamilton North and East

Site Name	Address 1	Address 2	Town	Postcode
Morrisons Hamilton	5 New Park Street		Hamilton	ML3 0BN
South Lanarkshire Council Headquarters	Almada Street		Hamilton	ML3 0AA
Hamilton Town House Library	102 Cadzow Street		Hamilton	ML3 6HH
Chatelherault Country Park	Ferniegair		Hamilton	ML3 7UE
Burnbank Library	76 Burnbank Road		Hamilton	ML3 0NA
Low Parks Museum	129 Muir Street		Hamilton	ML3 6BJ
Burnbank Centre	Burnbank		Hamilton	ML3 0NA
Whitehill Neighbourhood Centre	9 Hunter Road	Whitehill	Hamilton	ML3 OLH
R:evolve (Hamilton)	91 Quarry Street		Hamilton	ML3 7AD
Hamilton Churches Drop-In Centre	14 Beckford Street		Hamilton	ML3 0AH
Regent House (SLC)	9 High Patrick Street		Hamilton	ML3 7JA
Hamilton Water Palace	35 Almada Street		Hamilton	ML3 0HQ
Hamilton District Foodbank	24 Quarry Street		Hamilton	ML3 7AR
Hamilton Palace Sports Grounds - football pavilion		Motehill	Hamilton	ML3 6BY
Hamilton Palace Sports Grounds - bowling pavilion		Motehill	Hamilton	ML3 6BY
Strathclyde Park Golf Course	Motehill		Hamilton	ML3 6BY
Whitehill Universal Connections	9 Hunter Road		Hamilton	ML3 0LH
Hamilton Accies Community Food and Baby Bank	New Douglas Park	Cadzow Avenue	Hamilton	ML3 0FT

Ward 18 – Hamilton West and Earnock

Site Name	Address 1	Address 2	Town	Postcode
Hillhouse Library	Hillhouse Road		Hamilton	ML3 9TX
Hillhouse and Earnock Community Centre	121 Hillhouse Road		Hamilton	ML3 9TX
Brandon Gate (SLC)	1 Leechlee Road		Hamilton	ML3 0XB
Jock Stein Centre	Hillhouse Road		Hamilton	ML3 9TU

Ward 19 – Hamilton South

Site Name	Address 1	Address 2	Town	Postcode
Fairhill Library	South Lanarkshire Lifestyles	Neilsland Road	Hamilton	ML3 8HJ
Fairhill Lifestyles	Neilsland Road		Hamilton	ML3 8HJ
Hamilton Universal Connections	1 Woodside Walk		Hamilton	ML3 7HY
Eddlewood Public Hall	Birkhall Road	313 Strathaven Road	Hamilton	ML3 8BG
Hamilton District Foodbank	The Salvation Army	Burnblea Street	Hamilton	ML3 6RF

Ward 20 - Larkhall

Site Name	Address 1	Address 2	Town	Postcode
Larkhall Library	Larkhall Area Office	30 Union Street	Larkhall	ML9 1DR
Craigbank Community Wing	Glengonnar Street		Larkhall	ML9 1EL
Netherburn Hall	40 Overton Road		Larkhall	ML9 3BT
Clyde, Avon and Nethan Foodbank	Trinity Cottage	96 Union Street	Larkhall	ML9 1EF
Larkhall Health Institute	Low Pleasance		Larkhall	ML9 2HW
Larkhall Golf Course	Burnhead Road		Larkhall	ML9 3AA
Larkhall Leisure Centre	Broomhill Road		Larkhall	ML9 1QP
Larkhall Universal Connections	23/25 Union Street		Larkhall	ML9 1DR
Larkhall Christians Together	2 King Street		Larkhall	ML9 1DP
Hareleeshill Sports Barn	Donaldson Road		Larkhall	ML9 2SS
Dalserf Community Wing	Ashgillhead Road		Ashgill	ML9 3FJ